
  
 

Staff Report 

Variance Request 

DATES: June 17, 2024 

TO:  Irmo Board of Zoning Appeals 

FROM: Douglas Polen, Assistant Town Administrator 

SUBJECT: Variance Request  

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY: A 1-acre tract located at 900 Lake Murray Blvd, TMS R03915-01-10 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: Consider a variance to signage for businesses located on the lot  

 

Background 

In January, 2024 Staff received a sign application for the subject property, a 96 sf sign featuring 
two static faces and one LED Screen.  A variant without the LED portion measuring 56 sf was also 
submitted.  There are currently two older signs on the property, and the stated plan was to 
remove the two signs and replace with one new sign. 

At the time, the property was zoned Neighborhood Commercial, which allows for a 20 sf sign with 
a maximum height of 12 feet.  Staff advised the applicant that the best course of action was to 
rezone the property to General Commercial.  The GC Zone was more in keeping with the immediate 
area and would allow for a larger sign – 25’ tall and 50 sf per side. 

The property owner applied for a rezoning and it was granted on March 19, 2024. 

During and following the rezoning the sign company for the property owner sent in sign plans of 
various sizes, but all featured signs larger than 50 sf per side.  During this time Doug Polen, 
Assistant Town Administrator, communicated with both Dr. Mark Pelletier and a staff member at 
Premier Aesthetic Dentistry – Pamela – about the sign.  On March 27, 2024 Pamela sent Mr. Polen 
plans for a sign of 66.7 sf, stating that since this was a multi-tenant space, they should qualify for 
a multi-tenant sign. 



The Zoning Ordinance does differentiate between standard freestanding signs and multi-face 
signs.  Standard freestanding signs allow for 25’ tall and 50 sf per side.  Multi-face signs allow for 
25’ tall and 65 sf per side.  However, the Zoning Ordinance defines a multi-face sign as a “free 
standing sign advertising more than four businesses located within the same development.”  The 
subject property features two businesses, and therefore is permitted only a standard freestanding 
sign of 50 sf. 

The current sign submittal dated May 2, 2024 requested a 62 sf sign and was denied.  These sign 
plans are attached. 
 
Analysis 

When granting a variance, South Carolina State Law (SC Code § 6-29-800) states that “A variance 
may be granted in an individual case of unnecessary hardship if the board makes and explains in 
writing” five findings.  These findings are in question form below, with recommended answers 
proposed as Staff Analysis. 

1. Are there are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece 
of property? 

No.  The property has no substantial extraordinary or exceptional conditions when 
compared with nearby properties.  There are no such conditions that would necessitate a 
larger sign. 

2. Do these conditions generally apply to other property in the vicinity? 

N/A.  There are no extraordinary or exceptional conditions. 

3. Because of these conditions, does the application of the ordinance to the particular piece 
of property effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization of the property? 

No.  There are no extraordinary conditions, and the property can and has been effectively 
and reasonably used for years. 

4. Will the authorization of the variance be of substantial detriment to adjacent property or 
to the public good, and will the character of the district be harmed by the granting of the 
variance? 



All nearby businesses follow the Zoning Ordinance active at the time of permit.  That 
having been said, a 62 sf sign would not be a substantial detriment to adjacent property. 

5. The board may not grant a variance the effect of which would be to allow the 
establishment of a use not otherwise permitted in a zoning district, to extend physically a 
nonconforming use of land, or to change the zoning district boundaries shown on the 
official zoning map. The fact that property may be utilized more profitably, should a 
variance be granted, may not be grounds for a variance. Does the request accompany any 
of the aforementioned considerations?  

This variance would not establish an otherwise non-permitted use, extend a 
nonconformity, or change the zoning district boundaries.  One could argue that a larger 
sign would allow the property to be utilized more profitably. 

 
Staff Findings 

Staff finds that the variance should be DENIED.  Per State law, the Board of Zoning Appeals has the 
power “to hear and decide appeals for variance from the requirements of the zoning ordinance 
when strict application of the provisions of the ordinance would result in unnecessary hardship.” 
Staff sees no unnecessary hardship as the subject property is no different from surrounding 
properties, the surrounding properties are following the same code, and the subject property is 
currently being used successfully.  As such, it meets none of the requirements for a variance. 
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